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CREDIT SUISSE (UK) LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20607
The Directors present therr Report and the Financral Statements for the year ended 31 December 2007

International Financial Reporting Standards

Credit Suisse (UK) Limited’s 2007 financial statements have been prepared in accordance wath Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards ('IFRS’) as adopted for use in the European Union (EU)

Business Review

Profile

Credit Susse Group {'CSG'), a company domiciled in Switzerand, 1s the uttmate parent of a worldwide group of
companies {collectively referred to as the 'Credit Suisse group') specialising in Investment Banking, Pnvate Banking and
Asset Management

CSG prepares Financial Statements under US Generally Accepted Accounting Pnnciples (‘US GAAP')  These accounts
are publicly available and can be found at www credit-suisse com

Credit Suisse group, a leading financial services prowder, 1s committed to delivenng its combined financial expenence and
expertise to corporate, instituticnal and govemment clients and high-net-worth indwiduals worddwide, as well as to retal
chents tin Switzerland Credit Suisse group serves its diverse clients through three divisions, Investment Banking, Pnvate
Banking and Asset Management, which cooperate closely to provde holistic financial solutons based on innovatve
products and specially talored advice Founded in 1856, Credit Suisse group has a truly global reach today, with
operations in over 50 countnes and a team of more than 44,000 employees from approximately 100 different nations

I nking division

* Through its Investment Banking dvsion, Credit Suisse group supplies investment banking and secunties products and
semvices to corporate, institutional and govemment chents around the word Its products and services include debt and
equiy underwnting, sales and trading, mergers and acquisitons (M&A), dwestitures, corporate sales, restructunng and
mvestment research

* Through its Private Banking dmston, Credit Suisse group offers comprehensive advice and a broad range of weatth
management solutions, including pension planning, Iife insurance products, tax planning and wealth and inhentance adwice,
which 1s taltored to the needs of high-net-worth indwviduals worldwide In Switzerand, 1t supples banking preducts and
services to high-net-worth, corporate and retail chents

» Through its Asset Management dwvision, Credit Suisse group supphies products from the full range of investment classes
— money market, fixed income, equibies, balanced and altematve investments — to meet the needs of institutional,
government and prvate chents globally

These global dwsions are supported by Shared Services, which provides corporate semces and business support
Credit Suisse (UK) Limited (‘the Bank') 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of Credit Suisse, Zunch, part of the Credit Suisse

group It forms part of the Prvate Banking dwision and is authonsed and regulated by the Financial Services Authonty
(FSA)
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The pnncipat activities of the Bank are the prowision of advice relating to advsory and discrettonary investment sennces,
banking services including secured fending faciities and financial planning advice The product offenng includes cash
solutions, bond and equity products, advisory and discretionary hedge fund portfolios, structured products, tax efficient
products, treasury, credit and other investment consulting solubions

Strategy

The strategic goal of the Bank 1s to significantly increase assets under management over the next few years and builld a
significant presence in the extremely fragmented, highly competitve UK pnvate banking market place

Significant growth in both onshore and cffshore client acquisihon 15 based on targeting key prospects in pnvate market
segments with a natural affinty to Credit Suisse, sophisticated products and semvices, access to global markets and a

leading brand name

Performance

The Bank's net operating income for 2007 was £57 9m (2006 £41 2m} Total operating expenses for 2007 were
£52 2m (2006 £42 9m) The profit atinbutable to shareholders for the year was £3 6m (2006 loss £1 6m) As at 31
December 2007, the Bank had total assets of £2,626m (2006 £1,510m) and total shareholders’ equity of £92m (2006
£89m)

Capntal resources

In 2007 there was no change in either the authonsed or 1ssued share capital (2006 %21 6m issued)
The Bank must at all tmes monitor and demonstrate the compliance with the relevant regulatory capital requirements of
the Financial Services Authonty ('FSA") The Bank has put in place processes and controls o monitor and manage the

Bank's capital adequacy and no breaches were reported to the FSA dunng the year

In 2006 a £40m subordinated debt faciity was put in place with CSFB Finance BY  This facility has not yet been used for
additional capital in the Bank

Dividends
No dividends were paid or are proposed for 2007 (2006 ENil)

Risk Management

The Bank's financial nsk management objectives and policies and the exposure of the Bank to credit nsk, quidity nsk and
cash flow nsk are outlined in Note 28 to the financial statements

Directors

The names of the Directors as at the date of this report are set out on page 2 Changes in the Directorate since 31
December 2006 and up to the date of this report are as follows
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Appointments:
Gary J Tntton 17 January 2007
Mark E M Noms 5 June 2007
Stephen B Dainton (Non Executive) 19 March 2008
Resignations:
Richard A Hambro (Non Executive) 17 January 2007
Roy McGregor 17 January 2007
Paul A Rayner 15 March 2007
Philip K Ryan (Non Executve) 19 March 2008

None of the Directors who held office at the end of the financial year was beneficially interested, at any time dunng the
year, n the shares of the Bank or had any disclosable interest in shares of Credit Suisse group companies

Cirectors of the Bank benefited from qualtfying third party indemnity provistons in place dunng the financial year and at the
date of this report

Shareholders' Equity

The capital contnbution reserve has remained unchanged and consists of a capital iInjection receved from the parent entity
Credit Suisse Zunch

There have been no changes to authonsed or 1ssued share capital dunng 2007
Disclosure of Information to Audritors

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are each aware,
there 1s no relevant audit iInformation of which the Bank’s auditor 1s unaware, and each Director has taken all the steps that
he / she ought to have taken as a Director to make him / herseli aware of any relevant audit information and to establish
that the Bank's auditor 1s aware of that information

Employee Involvernent and Employment of Disabled Persons

The Bank gives full and fair consideration to disabled persons in employment applications, traming and career development
including those who become disabled dunng their penod of employment

The Credit Suisse group has a Disability Interest Forum in place in the UK as a iniative  This forum

¢ provides a support network,

* faciitates information shanng for those with a disability or for those canng for a family member or fnend with a disability,
and

¢ invites all those who want to participate and who have an interest

The forum raises awareness of 1ssues related to disability and promotes an environment where disabled employees are
supported and are given the opportunity to reach their full potential
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Donations

Dunng the year the Bank did not make any polricat or chantable donattons (2006 Nif)
Auditor

Pursuant to Section 386 of the Companies Act 1985, KPMG Audit Plc canbinues in office as the Bank's auditor

By Order of the Board
One Cabet Square Paul E Hare
London E14 4Qu Company Secretary

19 March 2008
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE DIRECTORS® REPORT AND
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Directars’ Report and the financial staternents in accordance with apphcable
law and regutations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law, they have
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable laws.

The financial statements are required by law to present fary the financial postion and performance of the Bank, the
Compares Act 1985 provides in refation to such financial statements that references in the relevant part of that Act to
financial statements giving a true and fair view are references to their achieving a fair presentation

In prepanng these financial statements, the Directors are required to

= select sutable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

* make Judgments and estimates that are reascnable and prudent,

* state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the ELJ, and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it 1s inappropnate to presume that the Bank will
conbinue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasenable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Bank and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act
1985 They have a general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of
the Bank and to prevent and detect fraud and other imegulanties

Legislation in the UK goverming the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislabon in
other junsdictons



CREDIT SUISSE (UK) LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CREDIT SUISSE (UK) LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of Credit Suisse (UK) Limited ('the Bank’) for the year ended 31 December 2007 which
compnse the Income Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the related
notes These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out theren

Thus report 1s made solely to the Bank's members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Bank's members those matters we are required to state to them 1n an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibilty to anyone other than
the Bank and the Bank's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The directors' responsibiites for prepanng the Directors' Report, and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU are set out in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities on
page 7

Our responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements in accordance wath refevant legal and regulatory requirements and Intemational
Standards on Audiing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our optnion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the financial statements have
been propery prepared in accordance with the Comparies Act 1985 We also report to you whether in our opinion the information given
i the Directors' Report 1s consistent with the financial statements

In addiion we report to you if, 1n our opimion, the Bank has not kept proper accounting records,  we have not receved all the
mformation and explanations we require for our audt, or if information speafied by law regarding Directors' remuneration and other
transactions 1s not disclosed

We read the Directors' Report and consider the imphcations for our seport If we become aware of any apparent misstatements wathin it

Basis of audit opimion

We conducted our audt In accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditng (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board
An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures i the financial statements I also
includes an assessment of the significant estmates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements,
and of whether the accounting pohcies are appropnate to the Bank's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtan all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to
provde us with sufficient ewidence to gve reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or other rregulanty or error In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentaton
of information in the financial statements

Qpnion
In our cpimcn

¢ the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, of the siate of the Bank's affars as
at 31 December 2007 and of its profit for the year then ended,

+ the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985, and
* the informaton given in the Director’s Report is consistent with the financial statements

KA Audit i

KPMG Audtt Plc
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor

London
19 March 2008



CREDIT SUISSE (UK) LIMITED

INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

2007 2006

Note £000 £000

Interest iIncome 4 118,456 85,174
Interest expense 4 (105,115) {74,031)
Net interest income 13,341 11,143
Net commissions and fees 5 33,198 26,165
Other operating income 5 11,321 3,877
Total non-interest income 44, 519 30,042
Net operating Income 57,860 41,185
Compensation and benefits 5 (39,762) (28,911)
Other expenses 5 (12,450} (13,975)
Total operating expenses (52,212) (42,886)
Profit /7 (Loss) before tax 5,648 (1,701)
Income tax (charge) / benefit 6 (2,066) 857
Profit / (Loss) after tax 3,582 (1,645)

The notes on pages 13 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements



CREDIT SUISSE (UK) LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2007

2007 2006

Note £000 £000
Assets
Cash and due from banks 5,817 14,380
Interest-beanng deposits with banks 1,050,274 129,449
Secunties purchased under resale agreements 7 942,840 920,979
Trading assets 8 13,126 12,349
Loans and recewvables s} 487,138 413,962
Deferred tax asseis 1 5,622 7,011
Other assets 12 20,477 10,845
Intangible assets 14 108 817
Property, plant and equipment 15 54 17
Total assets 2,525,456 1,509,809
Liabilities
Deposits 16 2,365,906 1,362,973
Trading habikties 8 12,807 12,069
Other habilities 17 50,890 39,221
Prowvisions 18 3,767 7,042
Total liabilthes 2,433,370 1,421,305
Shareholders’ equity
Called-up share capitat 19 102,300 102,300
Retained eamings (18,714 (©2,296)
Caprtal contnbution reserve 8,500 8,500
Total shareholders’ equity 92,086 88,504
Total liabilitres and shareholders’ equity 2,525,456 1,509,809

The notes on pages 13 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements

Approved by the Board of Directors on 19 March 2008 and signed on ts behalf by

) A An—
%/emy[/larshall
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CREDIT SUISSE (UK) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

Capital Tatal

Share Contribution Retained Shareholders’

Capital Reserve Earnings Equrty

£000 £000 £000 £000

Balance as at 1 January 2006 80,700 8,500 (20,651) 68,549
Net loss for the year - - (1,645) (1,645)
Increase in share capital 21,600 - - 21,600
Balance as at 31 December 2008 102,300 8,500 (22,296) 88,504
Capital Total

Share Contribution Retained Shareholders’

Capital Reserve Earmings equity

£000 £000 £000 £000

Balance as at 1 January 2007 102,300 8,500 (22,296) 88,504
Net profit for the year - - 3,582 3,682
Balance as at 31 December 2007 102,300 8,500 (18,714) 92,086

There were no dwidends proposed or paid in 2007 (2006 Nil)

The notes on pages 13 to 56 form an integral part of these financial staternents

1"



CREDIT SUISSE (UK) LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

2007 2006
£000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit / (Loss} before tax for the year 5,648 {1,701)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in operating
activities
Non-cash tems included i profit / (loss) before tax and other adjustments
Depreciation and amorbisation on plant, equipment and tangible assets 719 993
Net (increase) / decrease in operating assets
Secuntes purchased under resale agreements (21,861) (5,181)
Trading assets (777) (5,203)
Loans and recewvables (73,176) (43,331)
Interest beanng deposits with banks (920,825) 8,054
Other assets (10,614 (2,328)
Net increase / (decrease) in operating habilthes
Deposits 1,002,033 35,316
Trading habilhes 738 5,191
Other liabilities and provisions 8,394 (4,722)
Cash used in operations (8,821) {12,912)
Income taxes recewved / (paid) 306 (1,592)
Net cash flow used in operating activities (8,516) {14,504)
Investing activities
Capual expendrtures for plant, equipment and intangible assets (47) (20)
Net cash flow used n investing activities (a7) (20)
Financing activities
Increase in share capial - 21,600
Net cash flow from financing actvities - 21,600
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (8,563) 7,076
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 14,380 7,304
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5817 14,380

The notes on pages 13 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements
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CREDIT SUISSE (UK) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

1 General

The Bank 1s incorporated in the United Kingdom The address of the Bank's registered office 1s One Cabot Square,
London, E14 4QJ

The Financial Statements were authonsed for 1ssue on 19 March 2008
2. Significant accounting policies

a) Statement of compliance

Following the adophon of Regulation EC 1606/2002 on the 19 July 2002 by the Eurcpean Parhament, the Bank 15
required to prepare consoldated financial statements m accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU, including the
standards (JAS/IFRS), as well as the interpretations 1ssued by both the Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) and the
Intemational Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) as applicable to the Bank for financial penods beginning
1 January 2005

b) Basis of preparation

The financial statements are presented i pounds steding (GBP), rounded to the nearest thousand They are prepared on
the histoncal cost basis except that denvative financial instruments are stated at thewr farr value

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with adopted IFRS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptons that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and kablites, income and
expenses The estimates and associated assumptions are based on histoncal expenence and vanous other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilties that are not readily apparent from other sources Actual results may differ from
these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Rewvisions to accounting estmates are
recognised in the penod in which the estimate 1s rewised If the rewision affects only that penod, or in the penod of revision
and future penods If the rewvision has a significant effect on both current and future penods

The Bank has adopted the provisions of IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments - Disclosures’ The new standard 1s a disclosure
standard and does not change the recognibion and measurement of financial instruments  Accordingly, it will have no
effect on the Income Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity The new standard requires enhanced quantitative
and qualtative nsk disclosures for all major categones of financial instruments in the financial statements

The Bank adopted IFRIC 7 'Applying the Restatement Approach under 1AS 29 'Financial Reporbng in Hypernilabonary
Economies', IFRIC 8 'Scope of IFRS 2', IFRIC 9 'Reassessment of Embedded Denvatives' and IFRIC 10 'Intenm Financial
Reporting and Impaiment’

The Bank has elected not to early adopt the provisions of IFRS 8 'Operating Segments', which replaces IAS 14 'Segment
Reporting', and was 1ssued on 30 November 2006 and 1s effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 January
2009 This standard specifies how an entty should report nformahon about ds operating segments, based on informaton
about the components of the entity that management uses to make operating decisions The Bank's financial statements
would not be matenally impacted by the adophion of IFRS 8 and expects to adopt IFRS 8 with effect from 1 January 2009

13



CREDIT SUISSE (UK) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

b) Basis of preparation {continued)

The Bank has also elected not to early adopt and 15 cumently evaluating the potental impacts of the following IFRIC's,
which are 1ssued but not yet effective

s IFRIC 11 "IFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transachons' (effective for annua! penods beginning on or after 1 March
2007),

* IFRIC 12 'Service Concession Arrangements’ {effective for annual penods beginming on or after 1 January 2008),

» IFRIC 13 'Customer Loyalty Programmes' (effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 July 2008), and

* IFRIC 14 'The Limits on a Defined Benefit Asset Mimmum Funding Requirements and their Interaction’ (effective for
annual perods beginning on or after 1 January 2008)

The below accounting pelicies have been applied consistently by the Bank

c) Basis of consehdation

The Bank has two subsidianes

Buckmore Nominees Limited acts as a nominee company The net assets and results of this subsidiary have not been
consolidated into the Bank, as the entty 1s a non-trading and not considered matenal

Credit Suisse London Nominees Limited acls as a normnee company The net assets and resulis of this subsidiary have
not been consclidated into the Bank, as the entity 1s non-trading and not considered matenal

Details of the undertakings of both substdianes are given in Note 10

d) Foreign currency

Transachons denominated in currencies other than GBP are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of
the transaction Monetary assets and liabiites denominated in foreign cumencies at balance sheet date are translated to
GBP at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date Foreign exchange differences ansing from translation are recogmsed
n the Income Statement Non-monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies at balance sheet date are
not revalued for movements in foreign exchange rates

e) Cash and due from banks

For the purpose of preparation and presentation of the Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash
equivalents are defined as short-term, hughly iquid instruments with onginal matunties of three months or less and that are
held for cash management purposes

f) Securities purchased under resale agreements

Secunties purchased under resale agreements are treated as collateralised financing transactions The cash advanced,
including accrued interest, 1s recogrused on the Balance Sheet as an asset

Interest eamed on reverse repurchase agreements is recognised on an effective yield basis and recorded as mterest
ncome

14



CREDIT SUISSE (UK) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007
2 Suynificant accounting policies (continued)
a) Trading assets and liabilities

Trading assets and liabilibes relate to denvative nstruments  These assets and habilties are included as part of the trading
portfoho based on management's intent to sell the assets or repurchase the liabiiies in the near term, and are camed at
far value Transachons with normal settiement penod are recorded on a trade date basis

Far value 15 defined as the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a labiliy settled between knowledgeable,
wiling parties in an am'’s length transaction other than an involuntary hquidation or distressed sale  Quoted market pnces
are used when avalable to measure far value In cases where quoted market pnces are not available, far value 1s
estmated using valuation models consistent with those used in the financial markets Where the input parameters cannot
be validated using observable market data, reserves are estabhshed for unrealised gains or losses evident at the mception
of the contracts so that no gain or loss 1s recorded at inception  Such reserves are amorhised to income over the Iife of the
instrument or released inte ncome when observable market data becomes available

h) Denvative financial instruments

Al freestanding denvative contracts are camed at far value on the Balance Sheet regardless of whether these instruments
are held for trading or nsk management purposes

Denvatives classified as trading assets and liabihbes are those held for trading purposes Denvatives held for trading
purposes anse from customer-based activity

Fair value recorded for denvative instruments does not indicate future gans or losses, but rather the unrealised gains and
losses from valung all denvatives at a parbicular pont in tme The farr value of exchange-traded denvatives i1s typically
denved from observable market pnces and / or observable market parameters

i} Derecognition

The Bank enters into transachions where 1t transfers assets recognised on its Balance Sheet, but retains erther all nsks and
rewards of the transferred assets or a porbon of them If all or substantally all nsks and rewards are retaned, the
transferred assets are not derecogmised from the Balance Sheet In transachons where the Bank does not retain or
transfer substantially all of the nsks and rewards of ownership of a financial asset, it derecognises the asset if control over
the asset 1s lost The nghts and obligations retaned in the transfer are recogrised separately as assets and liabilities as
appropnate In transfers where control over the asset s retained, the Bank conbinues to recognise the asset to the extent
of its continuing involvernent, determined by the extent to which it 1s exposed to changes in the value of the transferred
asset

The Bank derecogrises financial iabihties when they are extinguished Where the Bank has a financial hability and this
instrument 15 exchanged for a new nstrument with the same counterparty, which 1s substanbally dfferent, or when an
existing nstrument classified as a financial habiity s substantally modified, the old instrument 1s deemed to be
extingushed and a new financial liability 1s recogrised Any gain or loss due to derecogniion of the extinguished
instrument 1s recorded in the Income Staternent Where a modification and not an extinguishment 15 deemed to have
occurred, the difference 1s adjusted to the camying value of the new instrument and reclassified mto income using the
eftective interest method

p Loans and recenvables and impairment losses on loans and receivables

Loans and recevables are recognised when cash 1s advanced to borrowers  They are inthally recorded at fair value, which
15 the cash given to onginate the loan, and are subsequently carmed at amorbsed cost  Interest ncome 1s accrued on the
unpaid prncipal balance

15




CREDIT SUISSE (UK) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

2. Sgnificant accounting policies (continued)

j) Loans and recewables and impairment losses on loans and recewables (continued)

The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether there 1s objective ewdence that a loan position or a portfoho of
loans 1s impared  An indmdual loan position or portfolio of loans 1s iImparred and impaiment losses are incurred if, and only
if, there 1s objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more loss events that occumred after the wrubial recognrion
of the asset and pnor to the balance sheet date (‘a loss event') and that loss event or events has had an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the portfolio that can be reliably eshmated

Many factors can affect the Bank's estimate of the impainment losses on loans and recewables, including volatiity of
default probabilties, rabtng mugrabons and loss seventy The estmation of this component of the impairment for the
portfolio involves applying histoncal loss expenence, adjusted to reflect current market conditions, to homegeneocus loans
based on nsk rating and product type To estimate this component of the impaiment for loans, the Bank segregates loans
by nsk, industry or country rating Excluded from this estmation process are loans where a specifically idenbfied loss has
been included in the specific component of the allowance for loan losses

The amount of impairment loss s measured as the difference between the asset's camying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's ongmal effective nterest rate  The amount of the loss 15
recognised in the Income Statement

The methodology and assumpthons used for estmating future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences
between loss estimates and actual loss expenence

An allowance for impaiment s reversed only when the credit quality has improved such that there 1s reasonable assurance
of timely collection ot pnncipal and interest in accerdance with the onginal contractual temms of the claim agreement

k) Netting

The Bank only offsets financial assets and lhabilihes and presents the net amount in the balance sheet where i
= cumently has a legally enforceable nght to set off the recogrised amounts, and
* intends erther to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and habilty simultanecusly

In many instances the Bank's net position on multiple transactions with the same counterparly i1s legally protected by
Master Netting Agreements Such agreements ensure that the net positon 15 settled i the event of default of erther
counterparty and effectively imit credit nsk on gross exposures However, if the transactions themselves are not intended
to be settled net nor will they settle simultaneously, it 1s not permissible under 1AS 32 to offset transactions falling under
Master Netting Agreements

The Bank currently has no legal nethng agreements with non related parties

D Income taxes

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year compnses current and deferred tax  Income tax 1s recognised in the Income
Statement except to the extent that it relates to items recogrised directly n equity, in which case the income tax 1s
recognised in equity For tems inihally recognised in equity and subsequently recognised m the Income Statement, the
related income tax inhially recogrised in equity 1s also subsequently recognised in the Income Statement

16



CREbIT SUISSE (UK)LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007
2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

D) Income taxes (continued)

Current tax s the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year and includes any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years Cument tax 1s calculated using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet
date

Deferred tax 1s provided using the balance sheet habiity method, prowding for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and habilihies for financial reporting purposes and thewr tax-base The pnncipal temporary differences
anse from the following depreciation of property, plant and equipment, provisions and other employee compensation and
benefits The amount of defemred tax prowded i1s based on the amount at which it 1s expected to recover or settle the
canying amount of assets and lhabies in the balance sheet, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date

A deferred tax asset 1s recognised only to the extent that 1t 1s probable that future taxable profits will be avallable against
which the asset can be utihised Defemred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realised

A deferred tax liabilty 1s recognised on taxable temporary differences ansing on un-remitted eamings of subsidianes except
to the extent that it 1s probable that such temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Information as to the calculation of income tax on the profit or loss for the penods presented 1s included in Note 6

m) Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist pnmanly of ntemally developed software Expenditure on intemally developed software 1s
recognised as an asset when the Bank is able to demonstrate its intention and ability to complete the development and
use the software in a manner that will generate future economic benefits, and can reliably measure the costs to complete
the development The caprtalsed costs of intemally developed software include all costs directly attnbutable to developing
the software, and amortised over its usefut life

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impaiment losses and are amorhised over an
estimated useful Ife of three years using the straight ine method The amorhisation of the intangble fixed assets s
included m the 'Other expenses' ine tem in the Income Statement

n) Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment 1s stated at histoncal cost less depreciabon Histoncal cost includes expenditure that 1s
directly attnbutable to the acquistion of the tems

Subsequent costs are Included in the asset's camying amount or are recogrused as a separate asset, as appropnate, only
when it 1s probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Bank and the cost of the tem
can be measured reliably All other repars and mantenance are charged to the ncome statement dunng the financial
penod n which they are incurred Depreciation on other assets 1s calculated using the straight-ine method to allocate their
cost to their residual values over ther esbmated useful lives, as follows

Computer equipment 3 -7 years
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CREDIT SUISSE (UK) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007
2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
n) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful iives are reviewed, and adjusted i appropnate, at each balance sheet date Assets
that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carryng amount may not be recoverable An asset's camying amount 1s wntten down immediately to its recoverable amount
if the asset's camying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount The recoverable amount 1s the higher of
the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value i use

Gans and losses on disposals are determined by companng proceeds with carmying amount These are included in the
Income Statermnent

o) Retirement benefit costs

The Bank has only defined contnbution pension plans The defined benefit plans are group schemes, 1in which the Bank 1s
not the sponsonng ently Obligations for contnbutions to defined contnbution pension plans are recognised as an expense
in the income statement as incumed )

In accordance with the provisions of IAS 19 'Employee Benefits' for defined benefit plans that share nsks between vanous
entihes under common control, no retirement benefit obligation 1s recognised in the Balance Sheet of the Bank and
defined contnbution accounting 1s applied, as the Bank is not the spensonng entity The Bank’s share of the retirement
benefit obligation 1s mstead recogrmised in the Balance Sheet of the sponsonng entity, Credit Suisse Secuntbes (Europe)
Limited, winch 15 extemal to the Bank but 1s a related party due to both entrhies being owned by Credit Suisse

p) Contingent habilites

Contingent llabiihes are not recognised because ther exstence will be confied only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertan future events not whelly within the control of the entily A contingent hability 1s not
recognised as a liabilty in the Balance Sheet but only disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements However,
provisions are recogrised (assuming that a reliable estmate can be made) if they are current obligations and rt 1s probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligatons

q) Share based payments

The Bank grants shares in its uttmate parent CSG to certain employees The Bank purchases CSG shares from Credit
Suisse (Intemational) Holding AG, another Credtt Suisse group company, upon settliement and then transfers those shares
to s employees

This arrangement has been classified as a cash-settled share-based payment due to the Bank’s obligation to setle the
liabilty by the delivery of an asset that 1s not equity instruments of the Bank A hability equal to the portion of the services
receved 1s recognised at the current market value determined at each balance sheet date  The expense for share-based
payments 1s determined by treating each tranche as a separate grant of share awards unless the employee 15 eligible for
early retrement or retirement before the end of the vesting penod, n which case recognition of the expense would be
accelerated over the shorter penod
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CREDIT SUISSE (UK) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007
2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
r) Interest incormne and expense

Interest income and expense inciudes interest income and expense on the Bank’s financial instruments owned, financtal
instruments sold not yet purchased and reverse repurchases Interest income and expense also includes interest flows on
the Bank's trading denvatives, which are recorded using the effective interest rates of the financial assets or financial
habilties to which they relate

s) Commissions and fees

Fee revenue I1s recognised when all of the following cntena have been met persuasive evidence of an agreement exsts,
services have been rendered, the pnce 1s fixed or determinable and collectability 1s reasonably assured Commissions and
fees eamed for nvestment and portfolio management, customer trading and custody services are recognised at the time or
over the penod, respectively, that the related service 1s provided

Incremental costs, that are directly altnbutable o secunng investment management contracts, are recognised as an asset
if they can be identified separately and measured reliably and if it 1s probable that they will be recovered These assets are
amorhsed as the entty recogrises the related revenue

t) Operating leases

The leases entered into by the Bank are pnmanly operating leases The total payments made under operating leases are
charged to the Income Statement on a strasght-liine basis over the penod of the lease When an operating lease 1s
terminated before the lease penod has expired, any payment required fo be made to the lessor 1s recogmsed as an
expense In the penod in which termination takes place

u) Dvidends

Dwvidends are recogrised when declared as a reduction of equity along with the corresponding hability equalling the amount
payable N

v) Provisions

Specific prowision 1s made n respect of known matenal costs and liabilities that are lkely to occur, such as fegal and
property costs These provisions are reviewed annually by management and adjusted accordingly

The Bank reports an onerous lease provision, which 1s made for the future rental and related costs of leasehold property
where 1t 1s vacant, surplus to the Bank’s requirements or where the leasehold property has been sublet at a loss

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements In applying accounting policies

The Bank makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and habiltes within the next
financial year Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on histoncal expenence and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are beleved to be reasonable under the arcumstances
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CREDIT SUISSE (UK) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007
3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies (continued)

Fawr value

As 1s the normal practice in the industry, the values the Bank repotts in the financial statements with respect to financial
instruments owned and financial instruments sold not yet purchased are in most cases based on far value, with related
unrealised and realised gans or losses included in the Income Statement Farr value may be objective, as 1s the case for
exchange-traded instruments, for which quoted pnces in pnce-efficient and hquid markets generally exist, or as 1s the case
where a financial instrument’s far value 1s denved from actively quoted paces or pnaing parameters or alternative pncing
sources with a reasonable level of pnce transparency For financial instruments that trade infrequently and have Iittle pnce
transparency, farr value may be subjective and require varying degrees of judgement depending on hiquidity, concentration,
uncertainty of market factors, pncing assumptions and other nsks affecting the specific Instrument

Uncertainty of pnaing assumptions and hiquidity are features of both denvatve and non-dervative transactons These
features have been considered as part of the valuation process As a result of these uncertainbes, the Bank does not
recogmise a dealer profit or unrealised gain or loss at the inception of a denvative or non-denvaiive transaction unless the
valuation underlying the unrealised gain or loss 1s evidenced by quoted market pnces in an active market, observable pnces
of other current market transactions or other cbservable data supporting a valuation techrique in accordance with IAS 39
‘Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement’ AG 76 The pnnciples of IAS 3@ ‘Financial Instruments Recognition
and Measurement’ AG 76 have been applied to all the Bank's transactions

Litigation contingencies

A contingency s an existng condition that mvolves a degree of uncertanty that will utimately be resolved upon the
occurrence of future events From time to time, the Bank 1s involved in a vanety of legal, regulatory and arbitration matters
in connection with the conduct of our businesses It is inherently difficult to predict the outcome of many of these matters,
particularly those cases in which the matters are brought on behalf of vanous classes of clamants, seek damages of
unspecified or indeterminate amounts or involve novel legal clams  In presenbing the financial statements, management
makes estimates regarding the outcome of legal, regulatory and arbitration matters and takes a charge to income when
losses with respect to such matters are probable and can be reasonably estimated

Charges, other than those taken penodically for costs of defence, are net established for matters when losses cannot be
reasonably estmated Estimates, by thew nature, are based on judgment and cumently avalable mformation and involve a
vanety of factors, including but not imited to the type and nature of the itigation, claim or proceeding, the progress of the
matfter, the adwice of legal counsel and other adwisers, the Bank's defences and expenence in similar cases or
proceedings According fo tAS 37 'Prowisions, Contingent Liabilhes and Coniingent Assets’, a provision shall be
recognised when (a) an entily has a present obhigation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, (b) it 1s probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and (c) a rehable
estimate can be made of the amount of the oblgation

Income laxes

Deferred tax valuation

Deferred tax assets and habilites are recogrused to reflect the estimated amounts of income tax recoverable / payable in
future penods in respect of temporary differences and unused cary forward of tax losses and credits  For temporary
differences, a deferred tax asset is recognised {o the extent that it is probable that taxable income will be available against
which the deductible temporary difference can be utlised Similarly, a defered tax asset 1s recogrused on unused carry
forward tax losses and credits to the extent that i 1s probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
unused cany forward tax losses and credits can be utihsed Penodically, management evaluates the probability that taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and unused cany forward tax losses and credits
can be utlised Within this evaluation process, management also considers tax-planming strategies The evaluation
process requires significant management judgement, pnmanly with respect to projecting future taxable profits
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CREDIT SUISSE (UK} LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007
3 Crhcal Accounting Estimates and Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies (continued)
Retirement benelit costs

The following relates to the assumptions Credit Suisse Secunties (Europe) Lid , the sponsor of the defined benefit plan,
has made in amving at the valuations of the vanous components of the defined benefit plan, of which the Bank 1s a

The cafculation of the expense and liability associated with the defined benefit pension plans requires an extensive use of
assumptions, which include the discount rate, expected return on plan assets and rate of future compensation increases as
determined by Credit Swsse Secunhes (Europe) Ltd Management determines these assumptions based upon currently
available market and industry data and histoncal performance of the plans and their assets Management also consuits with
an independent actuanal firm to assist in selecting appropnate assumptions and valuing its related labilhes The actuanal
assumpbons used by Credit Suisse Secuntres (Europe) Ltd may differ matenally from actual results due to changing
market and econormic conditions, higher or lower withdrawal rates or longer or shorter Iife spans of the parhicipants Any
such differences could have a significant impact on the amount of pension expense recorded in future years

Credit Suisse Secunties (Europe) Ltd 1s required to estimate the expected retum on plan assets, which 1s then used to
compute pension cost recorded in the consolidated statements of income Esbmating future retums on plan assets is
particularly subjective since the estimate reguires an assessment of possible future market retums based on the plan asset
mix and observed histoncal retums These estimales are determined together with the plan's investment and actuanal
advisors The Bank uses the calculated value of assets in calculating pension expense and in determining the expected
rate of retum

The discount rate used in determiming the benefit obligation 15 based either upon high quality corporate bond rates or
govemment bond rates plus a premium in order to approximate high-qualiy comporate bond rates In estmating the
discount rate, Credit Suisse Secunties (Europe) Ltd takes into consideration the relationship between the corporate bonds
and the tming and amount of the future cash outflows on its benefit payments

Tax contingencies

Significant judgment s required n determining the effective tax rate and in evaluating certain tax postions The Bank
accrues for tax contingencies which may be adjusted due to changing facts and aircumstances, such as case law, progress
of audits or when an event occurs requinng a change to the tax contingency accruals  Management regularly assesses the
appropnateness of provisions for income taxes Management believes that it has appropnately accrued for any corfingent
tax habilities

Share based payments

The Group uses the hability methed to account for s share-based compensahon plans, which requires the Group's
obhgation under these plans to be recorded at its cumrent estimated fair value Share awards and share unit awards that
contain market conditons are marked-to-market based on the latest share pnce information reflecting the terms of the
award Share unit awards that contan éamtngs performance conditions are marked-to-market based on the Group's actual
eamings performance to date and the Group's intemal eamings projections over the remaining vesting penod of the award
In determining the final hability, the Group also estimates the number of forfertures over the life of the plan based on
management’s expectations for future penods, which also considers past expenence
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CREDIT SUISSE (UK) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

4, Net interest income

2007 2006
£000 £000
Interest income on loans 44 881 40,940
Secuntes purchased under resale agreements 53,675 38,767
Interest Income on cash and cash equivalents 19,800 5,467
Total interest income 118,456 85,174
Interest expense on deposits (104,712) (73,662)
Other (403) (369)
Total interest expense (105,115) (74,031)
Net interest income 13,341 11,143
5. Non-interest income and total operating expenses
The following table sets forth the details of net commissions and fees
2007 2006
Commussions from lending business £000 £000
Investment and portfolio management fees 16,489 17,003
Commussions for other secunties business 11,446 5,678
Fees for other customer services 5,860 3,702
Commission and fee income 33,795 26,383
Commusstons from lending business
Commisstons for other secunties business (597) 218)
Commission and fee expense (597) (218)
Net commussion and fees 33,198 26,165
The following table sets forth the details other operating income ’
2007 2006
£000 £000
Net foreign exchange gain 2,601 3,426
Net referral ncome from other Credit Suisse group undertakings 8,720 452
Other operating income 11,321 3,877

Dunng the year the Bank referred business transactions to other Credrt Suisse group companies, which executed and
legally booked alfl the resulting revenues Accordingly an arm's length service fee was required to be pad to the Bank,

determined to be equal to 25% of the gross revenues of each transaction

The following table sets forth the details of compensation and benefits

2007 2006

£000 £000
Salanes and bonuses (28,083) (22,151)
Social secunty (4,412) {4,005)
Pension cost (5,971) (2,025)
Other {1,296) (730)
Compensation and benefits (39,762) (28,911)
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CREDIT SUISSE (UK) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

5. Non-interest revenues and total operating expenses {(continued)

The following table sets forth the details of other expenses:

2007 2006

£000 £000
Occupancy expenses (1,119) (1,380)
IT and machinery expenses (113) (414)
Depreciation and amorhisation expenses (719) (987)
Prowisions and losses (940) (2,375)
Travel and entertainment (1,431) (1,534)
Audtt fees (49) (49)
Professional services (4,987) (3,594)
Overhead allocation expenses (199 ©,044)
Market information expenses (511) (581)
VAT expenses (1,170) (644)
Other (1,219 (373)
Other expenses (12,450) (13,975)
6. Income tax

2007 2006
Current tax £000 £000
Cument tax on losses of the penod 1,447 1,522
Adjustments in respect of previous penods (769) 118
Total current tax 678 1,640
Deferred tax
Onginatron and reversal of temporary differences 339 (1,837
Adjustments in respect of previous penods 648 140
Effect of changes in tax rate 401 -
Total deferred tax 1,388 {1,697)
Income tax charge / (benefit) 2,066 (57)

No current tax nor defermed tax was credited directly to equity (2006 Enil)
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CREDIT SUISSE (UK) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

6 Income tax expense (continued)

An explanation of the relationship between tax expense and the accounting profit / (loss)

Further information about deferred income tax 1s presented in Note 11

The income tax charge / (benefit) for the year can be reconciled to the profit / (loss) per the Income Statement as follows

2007 2006

£000 £000
Profit / (Loss) before tax 5,648 (1,701)
Profit / (Loss) before tax multiphed by UK statutory rate of
corporation tax at the rate of 30% (2006 30%) 1,694 (B10)
Other permanent differences 92 195
Adjustments to current tax in respect of previous penods (769) 118
Adjustments to deferred tax in respect of previous penods 648 140
Effect on defermed tax resuling from changes to tax rates 401 -
Income tax charge / (benefit) 2,066 (57)

With effect from 1 Apni 2008, the rate of UK corporation tax 1s 28% The defemred tax balances reflect the impact of the
new rate of UK corporation tax Consequently, £401,582 was charged to the profit and loss account in 2007 (2006
SNI)

7. Securities purchased under resale agreements

The following table summanses the secunties borrowed or purchased under agreements to resell, at therr respectve
carrying values

2007 2006
£000 £000
Secunties purchased under resale agreements 942,840 920,979
Total 942,840 920,979

The agreement above, with Credit Swisse Secunties (Europe) Ltd represents a collateralised financing transaction used to
eam net interest income It 1s collateralised pnncipally by govemment secunties and money market mstruments and has
terms ranging from ovemight to payable on demand The Bank monitors the fair value of secunties receved and requests
addiional secunties or the retum of a porhon of the cash disbursed when appropnate in response to a decline m the
market value of the securbes receved Similarly, the retum of excess secuntes or additional cash 1s requested by Credit
Suisse Secunties (Europe) Ltd when appropnate in response fo an increase in the market value of secunbes sold under
the repurchase agreement
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

8 Trading activities

The foilowing table summanses the details of trading assets and liabilities:

2007 2006

£000 £000
Posttive replacement values of denvative trading posttions 13,126 12,349
Trading assets 13,126 12,349
Negatve replacement values of denvative trading positions 12,807 12,069
Trading liabilities 12,807 12,069
9. Loans and receivables
The following table sets forth details of the domestic (United Kingdom) and feretgn loan portfolio

2007 2006

£000 £000
Commercial 81,269 52,040
Consumer 15,106 17,832
Unrted Kingdom 96,374 69,872
Banks - 3817
Commercial 205,640 259,032
Consumer 185,243 80,341
Foreign 390,883 344,090
Allowances for impairment losses on loans and receivables (119) -
Total loans and receivables 487,138 413,962
The following table analyses total toans by matunty

2007 2006

£000 £000
Due within one month 298,027 164,407
One month to three months 171,467 168,166
Three months to one year 85,627 81,390
One to five years 2,236 -
Allowances for imparment losses on loans and recewvables (119) -
Total loans and receivables 487,138 413,962

25



CREDIT SUISSE (UK) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

10 Investments in subsidianes

The Bank has two subsidianes, Buckmore Nominees Limited (non-trading) and Credit Suisse London Nominees Limited
{non-trading)

Buckmore Nominees Limited
The wholly owned company 1s incorporated and operates in the United Kingdom and 1s registered in England and Wales

The Company has not been consolidated into the statutory accounts of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2007,
as the net worth of the entity 1s £2 (2006 £2), which 1s not considered matenal

Credit Suisse London Nominees Limited
The wholly owned cormpany 1s incorporated and operates i the United Kingdom and 1s registered in England and Wales

The Company has not been consoldated into the statutory accounts of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2007,
as the net worth of the enbity 1s £100 (2006 £100), which 1s not considered matenal

11. Deferred tax assets

Deferred taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the hability method using an effective tax rate of 28%
(2006 30%)

The movement for the year on the deferred tax account is as fellows

2007 2006

£000 £000
At beginning of the year 7,011 5314
(Credrt) / Debit to income for the year (988) 1,697
Effect of change in tax rate (401) -
At end of year 5,622 7,011
Deferred tax assets are attnbutable to the following tems

2007 2006

£000 £000
Provisions 939 1,904
Decelerated tax depreciation 1,628 2,083
Stock based compensation 3,165 2,639
Other short term temporary differences - 185
At end of year 5,622 7,011

26




CREDIT SUISSE (UK) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

11. Deferred tax assets (continued)

The deferred tax (debit) / credit in the income statement compnses the following temporary differences

2007 2006

£000 £000
Provisions (965) a8
Decelerated tax depreciation (754) 219
Stock based compensation 516 1,196
Other short term temporary differences (185) 184
Total deferred tax credit in the income statement {1,388) 1,697

With effect from 1 Apnt 2008, the rate of UK corperation tax 1s 28% The deferred tax balances reflect the impact of the
new rate of UK corporation tax  Consequently, £305,106 was charged to the profit and loss account in 2007 (2006
ENID

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised 1s dependent upon the availability of future taxable profits at the
time the existing deductible temporary differences reverse  The analysis of the deferred tax assets 1s shown above The
total amount of deferred tax assets 1s considered recoverable as the Bank 1s expected to recewe the benefit of any reversal
of the deductible temporary differences, erther agamnst future taxable profits or by surrendenng tax losses as group rehef
The Bank will recewve full consideration for any group rehef surrendered

12. Other assets

2007 2006

£000 £000
Brokerage recewables {(Note 13) 474 27
Interest and fees recewable 5,223 3,925
Amounts owed by Credit Suisse group undertakings 12,472 4,176
Group relief from Credit Suisse group undertakings - 982
Other 2,308 1,735
Total other assets 20,477 10,845

13 Brokerage receivables and brokerage payables

The Bank recognises recewvables and payables from transactions in financial instruments purchased from and sold to
customers, banks, brokers and dealers The Bank 1s exposed to a nsk of loss resuting from the inability of counterparties
to pay for or deliver financial instruments sold, in which case the Bank would have to sell or purchase, respectively, these
financial instruments at prevaling market pnces To the extent that an exchange or cleanng organisation acts as a
counterparty to a transacton, credit nsk 15 generally considered to be reduced The Bank requires customers to mantan
margn collateraf in comphance with applicable regulatory and intemal guidelines

All brokerage payables and recevables balances are short-term
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

13 Brokerage recewvables and brokerage payables (continued)

2007 2006

£000 £000
Due from banks, brokers and dealers 474 7
Total brokerage receivables 474 27

2007 2006

£000 £000
Due to customers (474) 27)
Total brokerage payables (a74) (27)
14. Intangible assets

2007 2006
Cost £000 £000
As at 1 January 2,935 2,929
Addrhons - 6
Disposals (6) -
As at 31 December 2,920 2,835
Accumulated amorhsation
As at 1 January 2,118) (1,142
Charge for the year {703) (975)
As at 31 December (2,821) (2,118)
Net book value as at 31 December 108 817
15. Property, plant and equipment

Computer Computer
equipment equipment

2007 2006
Cost £000 £000
As at 1 January 85 71
Additions 53 14
As at 31 December 138 85
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 January (68) (50)
Charge for the year (16) (18)
As at 31 December (84) 68
Net book value as at 31 December 54 17
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

16. Deposits
2007 2006
£000 £000
Interest-beanng demand deposis 226,654 203,783
Savings deposits 1,135 3,005
Time deposits 2,138,117 1,156,185
Total deposits 2,365,906 1,362,973
As at 31 December 2007, the remaining matunhes for time deposits were as follows
2007 2006
£000 £000
Up to 1 month 1,829,454 863,304
From 1 month to 3 months 217,371 196,146
From 3 months to 1 year 89,029 96,736
From 1 year to 5 years 2,203 -
Total time deposits 2,138,117 1,156,185
17. Other liabihties
2007 2006
£000 £000
Brokerage payables (Note 13) 474 7
Amounts owed to Credit Suisse group undertakings 16,281 11,715
Group charge from Credit Suisse group undertakings 1,451 -
Employee incentive bonus cash component 12,182 9,600
Share award obhgations 11,267 8,955
Qther 9,285 8924
Total other liabilittes 50,890 39,221
18. Provisions
Total Total
Banking Property Litigation 2007 2006
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at beginning of year - 6,348 694 7,042 6,023
Increase in provisions 259 531 150 940 2,421
Utilised dunng the year - (3,524) (774) (4,298) (1,202)
Changes in discount rate and passage of ime - - - - (8)
Changes in foreign exchange rates 3 - 80 83 {(102)
Balance at the end of the year 262 3,355 150 3,767 7,042

At the year end a provision exists for the future rental and related costs of leasehold property of £3,354,611 (2006
£6,347,661) where it 1s vacant, surplus to the Bank’s requirement or where the leasehold property has been sublet at a
loss The onginal provision was created in 1997 for £8 5 milion The lease 1s due to expire n September 2015
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19. Called-up share capital

Authorised 2007 2006
£000 £000

Equity

Ordinary shares of £1 each 150,000 150,000

Total authorised share capital 150,000 150,000

Allotted, called up and fully paid

Balance at the beginning of the year 102,300 80,700
Issued dunng the year - 21,600
Balance at the end of the year 102,300 102,300

On 31 May 2006 a £40 millon subordinated debt facility was granted to the Bank by Credit Suisse First Boston Finance
BV matunng 31 May 2031 As at 31 December 2007, this faclity was undrawn

20. Stock awards

The Bark's share-based payments, which are an integral part of the Bank's annual remuneration process, are an
important part of the overall compensation package for key employees and senior executives and are designed to promote
employee retention and align employee and sharehclder interests The majonty of share-based payments are granted as
part of the annual performance incentive bonus granted to employees subsequent to the financial year to which the
performance incentive bonus relates Share-based payments are generally subject to restnctive features such as vesting,
forferture and blocking rules

Following the integration of Credit Suisse group's banking business in 20056 and the launch of the integrated bank n
2006, the Credit Swisse group streamlined s share-based compensaticn plans and granted one common instrument in
2007, Incentive Share Unit (1SU) Previously granted awards will continue to settle under their ongmnal terms and are not
affected by the IS The ISU award combines features of traditional share grants with a leverage component linked to the
development of the CSG share pnce Each ISU will vest at a rate of one third of a share per year over three years, with the
potential additional shares vesting on the third anniversary of the grant date, depending on the development of the
leverage component The number of addtional shares, If any, to be delivered to employees n settlement of the leverage
component will be determined by reference to the monthly average CSG share pnce over the three year penod following
grant

The Bank awarded Performance Incentive Plan units (PIPs) as part of its long-term incentive program in 2006 and 2005,
based upon indwiduals' performance in 2006 and 2004, respectively Each PIP untt provides the holder with the potental
to receve CSG common shares at the end of the five-year vesting penod following the grant date, based on the
achievement of certain perfformance and market critena, continued employment with the Bank and certain other condihons
such as restnchve covenants and forferture prowisions Compensation expense for PIPs 1s adjusted penodically based on
management's estimate of eamings performance over the five year vesting penod

Total compensation expense for stock awards payments recogmised dunng 2007 and 2006 was £2,126,761 and
£5,065,285 respectvely

The total stock award liability recorded as at 31 December 2007 was £11,266,773 (2006 £8,955,065) The far value
used to calculate the stock award liability was the closing CSG share pnce as at 31 December 2007 CHF 68 10 (2006
CHF 85 45) The average weighted far value of awards granted in 2007 was CHF107 09 (2006 CHF7292) The
intnnsic value of vested share based awards outstanding as at year end was $£498,186 (2006 £2,632,726)
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20. Stock awards {(continued)

Maovements in the number of share awards and PIP units outstanding were as follows
2007 2006

No. of shares No. of shares

Stock excluding PIP units and ISU awards

As at 1 January 157,212 19,398
Granted 4,683 84,382
Shares transfered in’ - 64,743
Delivered (65,827) (9,597
Forferted (4,202) (1,714)
As at 31 December 91,866 157,212

2007 2006

No. of shares No. of shares

PIP Units
As at 1 January 38,871 27,107
Granted - 11,764
As at 31 December 38,871 38,871
2007 2006

No. of shares No. of shares No. of shares No. of shares
ISU Awards
As at 1 January - - - -
Granted 86,505 86,505 - -
Delvered (298) - - -
Forferted Q71 {1,269) - -
As at 31 December 85,236 85,236 - -

* Effectve 1 January 2008, a number of employees previously employed by Credit Suisse Secunties (Europe) Ltd
transfemmed their employment contracts and share awards to the Bank

There were no share options in 2007 (2006 Nif)
Stock option awards granted in or before January 2003 for service provided in prior years were fully expensed dunng the
year of service The Bank has cash settled the stock option habihities with CSG followsng the year in which stock options

were expensed

21. Retirement benefit obligations

The following disclosures contain the balances for the entire defined benefit plan sponsored by Credit Suisse Secuntes
(Europe) Lid , of which the Bank is one of many participants, who are all related parhes under common control  The Bank
accounts for its share of the plan using defined contnbution accounting
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21. Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

Defined benefit pension plans

The following table shows the changes in the defined benefit obligation and the far value of plan assets dunng 2007 and
2006, and the amounts included n the balance sheet for the Company's defined benefit pension and other post-

retirement defined benefit plans as at 31 December 2007 and 2006 respectively

2007 2006

£000 £000
Defined benefit obligation — beginning of the measurement penod 699,457 610,277
Service cost 1,919 1,355
Interest cost 35,566 28,566
Actuanal losses - assumptions (32,375) 37,209
Actuanal losses - expenence (8,616) 26,044
Benefit payments (4,233) (3,994
Defined benefit obligation — end of the measurement period 691,418 699,457
Far value of plan assets — beginning of the measurement penod 508,275 463,072
Actual retum on plan assets 37,620 44913
Contnbutions 144,810 4284
Benefit payments {4,233) (3,994)
Fair value of plan assets - end of the measurement period 686,472 508,275

Dunng 2007 the Bank expensed £4,247,000 (2006 £230,000) in respect of ts contnbutions to the UK defined benefit
scheme The 2007 expense includes a £4m allocation from CS Secunties (Europe) Limited to the Bank for the CS Group

Credit Suisse Secunties (Europe) Lid has agreed the valuation and funding of the UK defined benefit pension plan with
the Pension Fund Trustees as at 31 December 2005 Lump sum contnbuttons were pad by Credit Suisse Securthes
{Europe) Ltd of £140m in March 2007 and £70m in January 2008 Addiional annual tal contnbutions of £2m are
expected in Apnl of each year from 2009 until 2015, subject to the results of the next formal valuation, due as at 31
December 2008 Credit Suisse Secunhes (Europe) Lid may be required to contnbute, before October 2009, up to £48m

depending on the result of the next valuation
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21. Retirement benefit obhgatiens (continued)
Assumptions

The weighted average assumptions used in the measurement of the benefit obligation and net penodic pension cost for
the defined pension plan as of the measurement date were as follows

31 Decemberin % 2007 2006
Benefit obligations

Discount rate 580 510
Inflatton 320 285
Pension increases” 320 285
Salary increases 495 4 60
Net periodic pension cost

Discount rate 510 470
Salary increases 4 60 495
Expected long-term rate of retum on plan assets 736 670

* Pensions earmed pre 6 Apnl 1897 are subject to pension increases on a discrehionary basis

The assumptions for Iife expectancy n the 2007 benefit obligation calcutations pursuant to IAS 19 are based on 00 senes
year of tirth mortality tables with a scaling factor of 85% projected to date with allowance for the medium cohort and then
projected forwards with allowance for the medum cohort but subject to an underpin to longevity improvement rates of
05% pa forfemales and 1% p a for males

Plan assets and investment strateqy

The following table sets forth the weighted average asset allocation of the Credit Suisse group's intemational defined
benefit pension plan assets as at the measurement date

On this basis the post-retrement mortality assumptions are as follows

2007 2006
Life expectancy at age 60 for current pensioners aged 60 {years)
Males 28 25
Females 30 28
Life expectancy at age 60 for current pensioners aged 40 (years)
Males 30 oF
Females 31 30
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21. Retirement benefit obligations (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

Changes in the principal assumptions used to measure the benefit obkgation and net penodic pension cost would have had
the following effects

Increase Increase Decrease Decrease
Benefit obligation £000 % £000 %
One-percentage point change in
Discount rate 207,283 30 (153,377) 29)
Inflation 146,674 21 (115,045) a7
Salary increase 29,258 4 (25,227) (C:))]
1 year to ife expectancy at 60 14,766 2 (15,939) @
Net periodic pension cost
One-percentage point change in
Expected retum on assets 6,155 189 (6,080) (187)

Plan assets and investment strategy

The Credit Suisse Secunhies (Europe) Lid defined pension plan employs a total retum investment approach, whereby a
dversified mix of equities, fixed income investments and aftemative investments 1s used to maximise the long term retum
of plan assets while incumng a prudent level of nsk The intention of this strategy s to outperform plan liabilities over the
long run in order to minimise plan expenses Risk tolerance 1s estabhshed through careful consideration of plan habilbes,
plan funded status and corporate financiat condition

Furthermore, equity investments are diversified across UK and non-UK stocks as well as between growth, value and small
and large capitalisation stocks Other assets such as hedge funds are used to enhance long term retums while improving
portfolio dersificabon Denvatives may be used to take market exposure, but are not used to leverage the portfolio
beyond the market value of the underlying nvestments Investment nsk 1s measured and monitored on an ongoing basis
through annual hability measurements, penodic asset/hability studies and quarterly investment portfolio reviews To hmit
investment nsk, Credit Suisse Secunties (Europe) Lid pension plans follow defined strategic asset allocation guidelines
Depending on the market condrtions, these guidelines are even more limited on a short-term basis

Credit Suisse Secunties (Europe) Ltd employs a building block approach in determining the long-term rate of retum on
pension plan assets Histoncal markets are studied and assets with higher volatiity are assumed to generate higher
retums consistent with widely accepted capital market pnnciples The overall expected rate of retum on assets 1s then
denved by aggregating the expected retum for each asset class over the actual asset allocation for the Fund as at 31
December 2007
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21. Retirement benefit obligations {continued)

Plan assets and investment strategy (continued)

2007 2006
% of total fair % of total fair
value of value of
Fair value scheme Fair value scheme
£000 assets £000 assets
Equity secunties 440,344 641 362,353 693
Debt secunties 135,007 197 86,637 170
Altemative investments (pnmanly hedge funds) 110,070 16 0 66,898 132
Cash 1,061 02 2,387 0b
Fair value of plan assets 686,472 100.0 508,275 1000

Defined contribution pension plans

The Bank also contnbutes to vanous defined contnbution pensions pamanly in the United Kingdom The contnbutions in
these plans dunng 2007 and 2006 were £1,703,000 and £1,559,000 respectively

22. Related party transactions

The Bank 15 controlled by Credit Suisse which owns 100% of the ordinary shares, the uthmate parent being CSG,
incorporated 1n Switzerland

The Bank 1s involved in significant financing and other transactions, and has significant related party balances with
subsidianes and affihates of CSG  The Bank enters into these transactions n the ordinary course of business on market
terms

The averages below have been calculated using month end balances

a) Related party assets and habilities
Ulimate Fellow group

As at 31 December 2007 Parent companies Total Average
Assets £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash and cash equwvalents - 971 971 640
Interest-beanng deposits with banks - 1,050,274 1,050,274 431,890
Secuntes purchased under resale agreements and

secuntes borrowing transactions - 948,840 948,840 1,136,099
Trading assets - 6,546 6,546 4979
Cther assets 1,406 10,097 11,503 5,673
Total assets 1,406 2,016,728 2,018,134 1,579,281
biabilities

Deposits - 1,114,136 1,114,136 610916
Trading labilites - 2,995 2,925 4,333
Other habiibes - 16,281 16,281 16,566
Total liabilthes - 1,133,342 1,133,342 631,815
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22. Related parly transactions (continued)

a) Related party assets and liabilities (continued)

Ultimate Fellow group
As at 31 December 2006 Parent companies Total Average
Assets £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 322
Interest-beanng deposits with banks - 129,448 129,448 114,474
Secunties purchased under resale agreements and
secunties borrowing transactions - 920,979 990,979 944,770
Trading assets - 5,457 5,457 5,618
Loans - - - 56
Other assets 789 2,657 3,446 1,952
Total assets 789 1,058,541 1,059,330 1,067,192
Liabilihes
Deposits - 256,596 266,506 304,511
Trading liabilihes - 5,047 5,047 3,106
QOther liabihes - 10,701 10,701 12,756
Total liabiltes - 272,344 272,334 320,373
Ultimate Fellow group
For the year ended 31 December 2007 Parent companies Total Average
£000 £000 £000 £000
Interest income - 72,951 72,951 36,303
Interest expense - (26,380) {26,380 (11,453)
Fees and commissions 5,485 7,854 13,339 5,002
Ultimate Fellow group
For the year ended 31 December 2006 Parent companies Total Average
£000 £000 £000 £000
Interest ncome - 43,366 43,366 20,882
Interest expense - {11,437) {11,437 (6,084)
Fees and commissions 2,497 2,770 5,297 2,002
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22. Related party transactions {contnued)

b) Related party off balance sheet transactions

2007 2006
Off balance sheet tems £000 £000
Denvatives notional amounts 564,270 530,314
Secunties purchased under resale agreement 042,840 920,979
Undrawn secuntised debt facility 40,000 40,000
Total 1,547,110 1,491,293
The above table sets forth all related party off balance sheet transactions with fellow Credit Suisse group companies
¢) Remuneration
Remuneration of Directors

2007 2006

£000 £000
Directors' emoluments 812 679
Amounts recewable under long term incentive schemes 423 351
Compensation for loss of office 30 04

1,265 1,054
Company contnbutions to money purchase pension schemes 93 31

1,358 1,085

The aggregate value of compensation provided 1 the accounts for 2007 for Drrectors was £1,421,193 (2006

£935,090)

Where Directors perform services for a number of companies within the Credit Suisse group, the total emoluments payable

to each Director have been apportioned to the respective entilies

The aggregate of emoluments ard amounts recewvable under long term incentive schemes of the highest paid Director
was £747,951 (2006 £662,321) The tughest pad Director was a member of a defined benefit and defined contnbution
scheme, the accrued pension at year end was £51,833 and the contnbution paid dunng the year for the defined

contnbution pension scheme was £62,125 (2006 £9,663)
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22. Related party transachons (continued)

¢) Remuneration (continued)

Dunng the year the hughest paid Director receved an entiflement to shares under a long term incentive scheme

d) Remuneration of key management personnel

Number of  Number of
key key
personnel personnel
2007 2006
Retrement benefits are accruing to the following number of key persennel under defined
contnbution schemes 4 4
The number of key personnel who exercised share options 1 -
Key personnel in respect of whom services were recewved or recevable under long term
incentive schemes & 4
2007 2006
£000 £000
Emoluments 1,850 1,996
Armounts recewvable under long term incentive schemes 822 1,163
Compensation for loss of office 31 29
2,712 2,408
Group contnbutions to money purchase pension schemes 134 48
2,846 2,456

e) Loans and advances to Directors and key management personnel

There were no loans outstanding to or due from Directors or Key Management Personnel of the Bank at 31 December

2007 (2006 NI

23 Employees

The average number of persons employed dunng the year was as follows

Number Number

2007 2006

Front office 106 o2
Back office 17 114
223 206

The Bank's employees conduct work for both the Bank and Credit Suisse Secunbes (Europe) Ltd Employee costs are
allocated to each entity on a percentage basis based on a revenue statishc (68% (2006 54%)) The average number of
employees (382 9) calculated as the total number of employees per month dwvided by the number of months (2006

380 9) 1s multiphed by this statistic to reflect the Bank's average headcount for the year
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24 Denvatives and hedging activities

The Bank 1s active in most of the pnncipal trading markets and transacts n many popular trading products  As noted above,
this includes the use of futures, options and forward rate agreements in connection with its sales and trading activities

The Bank enters into denvative contracts etther as

» agent on behalf of clients, or

* pnnoipal where any market nsk s hedged with other enties

The following table sets forth detarls of trading dervaives mstruments

Positive Negative

Notional replacement replacement

As at 31 December 2007 amount value value
£000 £000 2000

Ophons bought and sold 99,379 398 368
Foreign exchange products 963,432 9,110 8,791
Foreign exchange preducts 1,062,811 9,508 9,189
Options bought and sold 114,261 3,490 3,490
Futures 8,090 128 128
Equnty / indexed-related products 122,351 3,618 3,618
Total derivative instruments 1,185,162 13,126 12,807
Positive Negative

Notional replacement replacement

As at 31 December 2006 amount value value
£000 £000 £000

Cptions bought and sold 77,304 462 462
Foretgn exchange products 960,821 9,937 9,657
Foreign exchange products 1,038,125 10,399 10,119
Options bought and sold 01,640 1,833 1,833
Futures 1,004 17 17
Equity / indexed-related products 92,644 1,950 1,950
Total derivative instruments 1,130,769 12,349 12,069
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25. Guarantees and commitments

The following tables set forth details of contingent habilies associated with guarantees and commitments

31 December 2007 Maturity Maturity Maturity Maturity Total gross Totalnet Collateral Carrying
<lyear 1-3years 3-5years >5 years amount amount (1) received value

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Credit guarantees and similar instruments 24,389 4,451 5,176 8,475 42 491 42,491 42,491 -
Total guarantees 24,389 4,451 5,176 8,475 42,491 42,491 42,491 -
Loan commitments 4,578 19,649 23,647 50 47,924 47,924 47,924 -
Total other commitments 4,578 19,649 23,647 50 47,924 47,924 47,924 -
31 December 2006 Maturity Maturity Maturity Maturity Total gross Total net Collateral Carrying
<lyear 1-3years 3-5years >5 years amount amount (1) receved value

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Credit guarantees and similar instruments 14,189 3,885 3,177 6,699 27,850 27,950 27,943 7
Total guarantees 14,189 3,885 3,177 6,699 27,950 27,950 27,943 7
Loan commitments 7,814 8,566 12,005 25 28,410 28,410 28,410 -
Total other commitments 7,814 8,566 12,005 25 28,410 28,410 28,410 -

(1) total net amount relates to gross amount less any sub-participations

Credtt guarantees are contracts that require the Bank to make payments, should a third party fail to do so under a specified existing credit obligation

Loan commitments represent unused credit faciities that cannot be revoked at any time without pror notice
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25 Guarantees and commitments {continued)

Lease commitments

The following table sets forth details of future mimimum operating lease commitrments under non-canceliable operating leases

2007 2006

£000 £000
Upto 1 year 1,484 1,484
From 1 year fo 4 years 4,452 4,452
From 5 years and over 5,936 7,420
Total future mimimum lease commtments 11,872 13,356
The following table sets forth detals of rental expenses for all operating leases

2007 2006

£000 £000
Minimum rentals 1,453 1,453
Sublease rental ncome (1,078) (600)
Total net rental expenses 375 853

26 Fair value of financial Instruments

The following table details the fair value of financial instruments for which 1t i1s practicable to estimate that value, whether or
not this 1s reported in the Bank’s Financial Statements Al non-financial mstruments such as defermed tax assets and
properly, plant and equipment are excluded

Quoted market prices, when available, are used as the measure of far value In cases where quoted market prices are not
avallable, far values are determined using present value estimates or other valuation techmiques, for example, the present
value of estmated expected future cash flows using discount rates commensurate with the nsks involved and fundamental
analysis Farr value estmation techniques normally incorporate assumptions that market participants would use in therr
eshmates of values, future revenues, and future expenses, including assumptions about inferest rates, default, prepayment
and volatlity Because assumptions are inherently subjectwe in nature, the estimated far values cannot be substantiated by
companson to independent market quotes and, in many cases, the estmated far values would not necessanly be realised n
an immedsate sale or settlement of the instrument

For cash and other Iiquid assets and money market papers matunng within one year, the fair value 1s assumed to approximate
to book value, given the short term nature of these nstruments  For those Hems with a stated matunty exceeding one year,
fair value 15 calculated using a discounted cash flow analysis

For non-impatred loans where quoted market pnces are available, the far value 1s based on such paces For vanable rate
loans which are repnced within three months, the book value is used as a reasonable estmate of far value For other non-
imparred loans, the fair value 1s eshmated by discounting contractual cash flows using the market interest rates for loans with
simiar charactenstics For imparred loans, the book value, net of valuation adustments, approxmates to far value The
secunties trading portfolio 1s carned on the balance sheet at far value

The far values of positive replacement values of denvative instruments, negatve replacement values of dervatve instruments
and financial nvestments from the banking business are based on quoted market pnces  Where these are not available, far
values are based on the quoted market pnces of comparable instruments, or are estmated by discounting estimated future
cash flows or using other valuation techniques
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26 Fair value of financial instruments {continued)

For deposit instruments with no stated maturty and those with onginal maturhes of less than one year, the book value 1s
assumed to approximate far value due to the short term nature of these habiihes For deposit nstruments with a stated
matunty exceeding one year, farr value 1s calculated using a discounted cash flow analysis

As at 31 December 2007 Bock Value Fair Value
Financial assets £000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 5,817 5,817
Interest-beanng deposits with banks 1,060,274 1,060,274
Secunhes purchased under resale agreements 942,840 942,840
Frading assets 13,126 13,126
Loans 487,138 487,134
Total financial assets 2,499,195 2,499,191

Financial liabilities

Deposits 2,365,906 2,365,904
Trading habilites 12,807 12,807
Total financial habilies 2,378,713 2,378,711
As at 31 December 2006 Book Value Fair Value
Financial assets £000 £000
Cash and cash equwalents 14,380 14,380
Interest-beanng deposits with banks 120,449 129,449
Secunhes purchased under resale agreements 920,979 920,979
Trading assets 12,349 12,349
Loans 413,962 413,962
Total financial assets 1,491,119 1,491,119

Financial habilihes

Deposits 1,362,973 1,362,973
Trading habilihes 12,069 12,069
Total financial habilities 1,375,042 1,375,042

27. Assets pledged or assigned

The following table sets forth details of assets pledged or assigned 2007 2006

£000 £000
Farr value of collateral receved with the nght to sell or repledge 942,840 920,979
Total of fair value of collateral receiwved with the nght to sell or repledge 942,840 920,979

As at 31 December 2007 and 2006, collateral was receved in connection with resale agreements  As at these dates, none
of the collateral receved by the Bank had been sold or repledged

The Bank has no cash restnicted under UK or foreign banking regulations
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28 Financial Instruments Risk Position

a. Overview

The Bank 15 part of Credit Suisse group and its nsks are managed as part of the global Credit Suisse group The Credit
Suisse group nsk management process Is designed to ensure that there are sufficient controls to measure, monitor and
control nsks in accordance with Credit Swisse group’s contro! framework and in consideration of industry best practices
The pnmary responsibility for nsk management lies with Credit Swsse group’s senior business ine managers They are
held accountable for all nsks associated with therr businesses, including counterparty nsk, market nsk, hquidity nsk,
operational nsk, legal nsk and reputational nsk

Risk management principles

The prudent taking of nsk 1s fundamental to the business of the Credit Swsse group The pnmary objectves of nsk
management are to protect the financial strength and the reputation of the group, while looking to ensure that capital 1s well
deployed to maximise income and shareholder value The Credit Suisse group’s nsk management framework 1s based on
the following pnnciples, which apply universally across all businesses and nsk types

* Protection of financial strength Credit Suisse group controls nsk in order to limit the mpact of potentally adverse events
on Credit Suisse group's capital and income The Credit Suisse group's nsk appetite 1s o be consistent with its financial
resources

* Protection of reputation The value of the Credit Suisse group franchise depends on the reputation Protecting a strong
reputation 1s both fundamental and an overnding concem for all staff members

* Risk transparency Risk transparency 1s essenbal so that nsks are well understood by sentor management and members
of the CSG Board of Directors and can be bafanced against business goals

* Management accountability The group 1s organised nto business segments that own the comprehensive nsks assumed
through therr operafions Management for each segment 1s responsible for the engoing management of their respective nsk
exposures and earning a sufficient fong term retum for the nsks taken

* Independent oversight Risk management i1s a structured process to identify, measure, monitor and report nsk  The nsk
management and legal and compliance functions operate independently of the front office to ensure the integrty of the
group's control processes The nsk management funchons are responsible for implementing all relevant nsk policies,
developing tools to assist semsor management to determine nsk appetite and assessing the overall nsk profile of the group

Risk management oversight

Risk management oversight 1s performed at several levels of the organisation The group has adapted s existing
framework to its new organisational structure  In addition to vanous group leve! boards and committees, key responsibilities
lie with the following management bodies and committees

Risk management oversight at the Credit Suisse group managerment Jevel as at 1 January 2008

¢ Credi Suisse group Executve Management (Chief Executve Officers and Executwve Boards) Responsible for
implementing the legal entily’s strategy and actively managing its portfelio of businesses and tts nsk profile to ensure that
nsk and retum are balanced and appropnate for current market conditions

*» Strategic Risk Management (SRM) For the Credit Suisse group, SRM s an separate function with responsibility for
assessing the overall nsk profile both on a group-wide levet and for indmdual businesses, and recommending corrective
action if necessary SRM reports to the Chief Risk Officer of CSG

¢ Risk Measurement and Management (RMM) RMM 1s an separate funchon responsible for the measurement and reporting
of credit nsk, market nsk, operational nsk and economic nsk capital data, managing nsk hmis, and establishing pohcies on
market nsk and economic nsk capital RMM reports to the Chief Risk Officer of C5G
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28. Financial instruments nsk position (continued)
a. Overview (continued)

e Credit Risk Management (‘CRM?) CRM 1s an separate function headed by the Chief Credit Officer ('CCO") with
responsibility for approving credit hmits, momitonng and managing indmdual exposures and assessing and managing the
quality of the segmental and business area's credit portfolios CRM reports to the Chief Risk Officer of CSG

Credit Suisse group nisk management commitiees as at 1 January 2008

¢ Capital Allocation and Risk Management Commuttee (CARMC) |s responsible for supervising and directing the Credit
Suisse nsk profile on a consolidated basis, recommending nsk imits to the CSG Board of Directors and s Risk Committee
and for establishing and allocating nsk hmits within Credt Swisse CARMC 1s also responsible for supervising the
development of the Credit Suisse banking businesses' balance sheets Responsible for revewing and addressing
operational nsk 1ssues at Credit Suisse, CARMC dwdes s oversight into three cycles Asset and Liabiity Management,
Position Risk for Market and Credit Risk, and Operational Risk

* Risk Processes and Standards Committee (RPSC) Is responsible for establishing and approving standards regarding nsk
management and nsk measurement

¢ Credit Portfoho & Provisions Review Committee Is responsible for reviewing the quality of the crednt portfolio, with a focus
on the development of impaired assets and the assessment of related provisions and valuation allowances

¢ Reputational Risk Review Committee Is responsible for setting the policy regarding reputational nsks within Credit Suisse
¢ Divisional Risk Management Committees (RMC) Within the investment banking, pnvate banking and asset management
divisions of Credit Suisse, the respective divisional RMC 15 responsible for supenising and directing the disional nisk profile
on a consolidated basis, for establishing and implementing nsk management policies, recommending nsk imits to the
CARMC and establishing and allocating nsk limits within the dvision

Risk limits

Fundamental to nsk management s the establishment and maintenance of a scund system of nsk imits to control the range
of nsks inherent in the business actvities The size of the Imits reflects the group’s nsk appetite given the market
environment, the business strategy and the financial resources avarlable to absorb losses

The Credit Suisse group uses an Economic Risk Capital (ERC) mit structure to it overall position nsk-taking The level
of nsk incumred by the segments 1s further restncted by specific imits, for example with respect to trading exposures, the
mismatch of interest eaming assets and mterest eaming liabiities and emerging market country exposures  Within the
businesses, the nsk mits are allocated to lower organisational levels, numerous other mits are established to control
specific nsks and a system of indmdual counterparty credit imits is used to Iimit concentration nsks

Interest rate sensitivity

Interest rate sensitviy analysis was completed on the Bank's portfolio and the results indicated no matenal interest rate nsk
The largest interest rate exposure on any matunty band was less than £1,000

Economic risk capital

Economic nsk capital represents current market best practice for measunng and reporting all quantifiable nsks It is called
economic nsk capital because it measures nsk in terms of economic realiies rather than regulatory or accounting niles  The
Credit Swsse group uses an economic nsk capital model — called (ERC) — as a consistent and comprehensve nsk
management tool, which also forms an important element in the capital management and planning process and an element
tn the performance measurement process
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28. Financial Instruments Risk Posrhon {(contihued)

a. Overview (continued)

ERC 15 calculated separately for position nsk, operational nsk and expense nsk These three nsk categones measure very
driferent types of nsk

* Position nsk ERC - the level of unexpected loss in economic value on the portfolio of positions over a one-year honzon
that 15 exceeded with a gwven, small probability (1% for nsk management purposes, 003% for capttal management
purposes)

* Operational nsk ERC - the level of loss resulting from inadequate or faled intemal processes, peaple and systems or from
extemnal events over a one-year honzon that 15 exceeded with a small probabilty (0 03%) Estimating this type of ERC 1s
inherently more subjective, and reflects both quantitative tools as well as senior management judgement

* Expense nsk ERC - the difference between expenses and revenues in a severe market event, exclusive of the elements
captured by posrhon nsk ERC and operational nsk ERC

Market nsk 1s the nsk of loss ansing from adverse changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, equity pnces,
commodity prces and cther relevant market parameters, such as market volatities The group defines its market nsk as
potential changes m far values of financial instruments in response to market movements A typical transaction may be
exposed to a number of different market nsks

The Bank has a policy of not taking proprietary market nsk posttions  Trading transactions are generally entered into on
either an agency or back-to-back basts There are small market nsk limits (foreign exchange and interest rate exposure) to
faciltate the bulking of small client positions

b. Currency nsk

The Bank takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial
position and cash flows The Board sets imits on the level of exposure by currency and in total for both overmight and intra-
day posrtions, which are monitored daily
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28. Financial Instruments Risk Position (continued)

b. Currency risk (continued)

The table below summanses the Bank's exposure to foreign cumency exchange rate nsk at 31 December 2007 and 2006
Included in the table are the Bank's assets and habilties at cammying amounts, categonsed by currency

2007 2006

As at 31 December Assets Liabilities Net Assets  Liabilities Net

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Austrahan dollar 6,551 (6,547) 4 4,854 (4,847) 7
Baht 9 @ 5 4 m 3
Canadian dollar 18,687 (18,586) 1 13,467 (13,474) (N
Czech koruna 6 (&) - 1 - i
Danish krone 1 §))] - 2 © -
Euro 1,099,524 (1,009,415) 109 314328  (314,317) 1
Hong Kong dollar 692 (690) 2 752 (750) P4
Hunganan fonnt - - - 25 (&) 19
Icelandic krona 763 (760) 4 154 (147) 7
Israel new shekel 4 - 4 4 - 4
Japanese yen 16,472 {16,478) (5)] 15,103 (15,094} 9
New Zealand dollar 553 (549) 4 727 (726} 1
Norwegian krone 92,737 (2,736) 1 2,657 (2,661} @
Singapore dollar 14,924 {14,920) 4 13,974 (13,972) 2
South Afncan rand 1,702 (1,693) 9 1,606 {1,605) i
Swedish krona 13,929 {13,924) 5 3,086 (3,890) o6
Swiss franc 89,114 (88,303) 811 49,409 (42,356) 53
Turkish hra 427 (430) 3 1,007 {1,007) -
UAE dirham 250 (250} - - - -
US dollar 732,829 (732,426) 404 813,474 (813,691) (17

Foreign exchange nsk related to accrued net income and net assets are centrally and systematically managed on a group
basis with a focus on nsk reduction and diversrfication Risk 1s monrtored and maraged at an entity level through the
leveling of accrued profit and losses which are incurred in a currency other than the entity's functional currency

c. Credit risk

The Credit Risk Management team 1s an independent function headed by the Credit Unt Head with responsibility for
approving credit limits, monitonng and managing indmdual exposures and assessing and managing the quahty of the credit
porifolo  They establish broad policies and guidelines goveming the Bank's credit nsk appette The Credt Risk
Management team reports to Credit Risk Management in Zunch and 1s a part of the Chief Risk Officer (CRQ) dmsion within
Shared Services The CRO 1s responsible for establshing an orgamisational basts to manage all nsk management matters of
Credit Swsse through the four pnmary nsk functions independent from the front office (SRM, RMM, CRM, BCRO)

* Strategic Risk Management (SRM) SRM s responsible for assessing the overall nsk profile on a bank-wide, portfoho
level and for mdmdual businesses, and recommending corrective action where necessary

* Risk Measurement and Management (RMM) RMM 1s responsible for the measurement and reporting of credt nsk,
market nsk, operational nsk and economic nsk capital data, managing nsk imits and estabiishing policies on market nsk and
economic nsk capital
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28. Financial Instruments Risk Position (continued)

¢. Credit risk (continued)

* Credit Risk Managernent (CRM) CRM is headed by the Chief Credit Officer with responsibility for approving credit limits,
monitenng and managing indmvidual exposures and assessing and managing the quality of the segment and business area's
credit portfolios and allowances

¢ Bank Operational Risk Oversight (BORO) BORO s responsible for oversight of the bank’s operational nsk, including,
govemance and policy aspects, development and reporting of key nsk indicators as well as operational nsk capral
management and allocabon

Definition of counterparty risk

Counterparty credit nsk is the possibility of loss incurred as a result of a borrower or counterparty faling to meet its financial
obligations In the event of a default, a bank generally incurs a loss equat to the amount ewed by the debtor, less any
recovery amount resulting from foreclosure, hiquidation of collateral or the restructunng of the debtor company

Credit nsk exists within lending products, commitments and exposure ansing from denvatves, foreign exchange and other
transactions

Credit nsk management approach

Counterparty credit nsk 1s the possibiity of loss incurred as a result of a borrower or counterparty falling to meet tts financial
obligations In the event of a default, a bank generally incurs a loss equal to the amount owed by the debtor, less any
recovery amount resulting from foreclosure, hquidation of collateral or the restructunng of the debtor company

This credit nsk management framework 1s regularly refined and covers all banking business areas that are exposed to credit
nsk The framework is designed to cover all of the credt exposures in the banking business and compnses seven core
components

an mdvidual counterparty and country rating system,
a transaction rating system,

a counterparty credit hmit system,

country and regional concentration limits,

a nsk-based pncing methodology,

achve credit portiolio management, and

a credit nsk provisioning methodology

The Bank evaluates credit nsk through a credit application request and approval process, ongoing credit reviews and
counterparty menitonng and a credit quality review process Expenenced credit officers approve credit requests and assign
internal ratings based on analysis and evaluation of the counterparty's creditworthiness and the type of credit transaction

Each counterparty that generates a potentral or actual credit nsk exposure 1s assigned a nsk ratng  Addittonally, the Bank
assigns an estimate of the expected loss on a transaction in the event of a counterparly default, based on the transaction
structure  The countemarty credit rating 1s used in combnabion with credit (or credit equivalent) exposure, collateral held
and the loss given defautt assumpthion to estmate the potential credit loss

All counterparties are assigned a credit rating as noted above The intensity and depth of analysis is related to the amount,
duration and level of nsk being proposed together with the percewved credit quality of the counterparty or 1ssuer n queshon
Analysis consists of a quanttative and qualitative portion and stnves to be forward looking, concentrating on economic
trends and financial fundamentals In addihon, analysts make use of peer analysis, ndustry compansons and other
quantitatve tools Any final rating requires the consideration of qualtative factors relating to the counterparty, its industry
and management
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28. Financial Instruments Risk Position (continued)

c. Crednt nsk (continued)

In addition to the aforementioned analysis, all counterparty ratings are subject to the rating of the country in which they are
domiciled Analysis of key sovereign and economic 1ssues for all junsdictions 1s undertaken and these are considered when
assigning the rating and nsk appetite for indmdual counterparties

A ngorous credit quality review process has been established to prowde an eary identffication of possible changes in the
creditworthiness of clents and includes regular asset and collateral quality reviews, business and fimancial statement
analysis and relevant economic and industry studies Other key factors considered in the review process include current and
projected business and economic conditiens, histoncal expenence, regulatory requirements and concentrations of credd
volume by industry, country, product and counterparty rating Regularly updated watch-lists and review meetings are used
for the dentification of counterparties where adverse changes in crediworthiness could occur due to events such as
announced mergers, eamings weakness and lawsurts

A system of indwvidual credit imits 15 used to manage indmidual counterparty credit nsk Certain other imits are also
established to address concentration issues in the portfolio, including a comprehensve set of country and regional lirmits
Credit exposures to indvidual counterparties, products, tndustnes, countnes or segments and adherence to the related himits
are monitored by credit officers

The review process culminates in a quarterly determinabon of the appropnateness of allowances for credit losses A
systematic provisioning methodology 1s used to identify potential credit nsk refated losses

Credit risk from lending and credrt related transactions

Credit nsk associated with the Bank's iending and other credit related actmties 1s a function of the amount and currency
that the Bank has lent or committed to lend Each faciily 1s approved by the Credit Officer, Credit Uit Head, Zunch or the
Chief Credit Officer in New York, dependent upon the aggregate size of total counterparty group exposure

Credit nsk arising from trading positions and derivative transactions

Credit nsk associated with the Bank's trading and denvatives business 1s measured aganst counterparty hmits on at least a
daily basis Credit nsk is a function of the mark to market exposure and currency of the position, defined in terms of mark-
to-market replacement value and potential exposure to matunty The latter s based on the volatilty of the underlying market
factors including, for example, interest and foreign exchange rates The Bank reduces credit nsk by obtaining collaterat
based upon an ndwvidual assessment of counterparties indvdually Generally the Bank accepts collateral n the form of
cash, treasury instruments 1ssued by G8 countnes, and other marketable secunties
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28. Financial Instruments Risk Position (continued)

c. Credt risk (continued)

The following table summanses the Bank's exposure to credit nsk

As at 31 December 2007 UK Africa Americas Asia Australasia Europe Middle East Total
Assets £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash and due from banks 964 279 838 770 1,820 1,063 - 5,817
Interest-beanng deposits with banks 904,114 - - - - 146,160 - 1,080,274
Secunties purchased under resale agreements 942,840 - - - - - - 042,840
Trading assets 9,209 72 1,622 36 - 1,643 644 13,126
Loans 87,707 14,243 150,439 9,389 1 135,178 90,181 487,138
Other assets 11,144 117 3,363 33 63 1,689 4,068 20,477
Total assets exposed 1,955,978 14,704 156,262 10,228 1,984 285,623 94,893 2,519,672
As at 31 December 2006 UK Africa  Americas Asia Australasia Europe Middle East Total
Assets £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash and due from banks 14,380 - - - - - - 14,380
Interest-beanng deposits with banks 126,449 - - - - - - 129,449
Secuntes purchased under resale agreements 920,979 - - - - - - 920,979
Trading assets 7,371 27 2,608 273 - 1,963 107 12,349
Loans 52,300 5,272 146,530 5,939 292 112,075 91,554 413,962
Other assets 9,478 - - 126 - 1,242 - 10,846
Total assets exposed 1,133,957 5,299 149,138 6,337 292 115,280 91,661 1,501,964
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28 Financial Instruments Risk Position (continued)

d. Country risk

Country nsk 1s the nsk of a substantial, systemic loss of value in the financial assets of a country or group of countnes,
which may be caused by dislocations in the credit, equity, and / or currency markets

The Bank manages its country nsk as part of credrt nsk management as discussed in section {c) of this note

e Settlement nsk

Settlement nsk anses whenever the settlement of a transaction results in timing differences between the disbursement of
cash or secunties and the receipt of countervalue from the counterparty This nsk anses whenever transactions settle on a
'free of payment' basis and 15 especially relevant when operating across time zones

In those instances where market convention and/or products preclude a value-for-value exchange, the Bank manages s
nsk through confimation and affirmation of transachon details with counterparties In addition, it also proactively seeks to
manage the timing of settlement instructions to its agents and the reconahabion of Incoming payments in order to reduce
the window of exposure CRM considers these factors in deciding counterparty nsk imits

f Legalrisk

The Bank faces significant legal nsks in its businesses Legal nsks include, among other things, disputes over the terms of
trades and other transactions in which the Bank acts as pnncipal, the unenforceability or inadequacy of the documentation
used to give effect to transactions in which the Bank participales, investment sutability concems, comphance with the laws
and regulations (ncluding change in laws or regulations) of the many countnes in which the Bank does business, and
disputes with its employees Some of these transactions or disputes result in potential or actual ihgation that the Bank must
incur legal expenses to defend

The Bank ts subject to extensive regulation in the conduct of its investment business A faifure to comply with applicable
regutations could result in regulatory inveshgations, fines and restnctions on some of the Bank's business activihes or other
sanctions The Bank seeks to mimimise legal nsk through the adoption of comphiance and other policies and procedures,
continuing to refine controls over business practices and behaviour, employee traning sessions, the use of appropnate legal
documentation, and the involvement of the Legal and Compliance department and outside legal counsel

g. Operational risk

Operattonal nsk 1s the nsk of loss resulting from inadequate or faled intemal processes, people and systems or from
extemnal events The Bank’s pnmary aim 1s the early dentification, recording, assessment, monitonng, prevention and
mitigation of operational nsks, as well as timely and meaningful management reporting

Cperational nsk 1s inherent in most aspects of the Bank's actvities and compnses a farge number of disparate nsks  While
market and credit nsk are often chosen for the prospect of gain, operational nsk 1s nomally accepted as a necessary
consequence of doing business In companson to market or credit nsk, the sources of operational nsk are difficutt to identfy
comprehensively and the amount of nsk s also intnnsically difficult to measure The Bank therefore manages operational
nsk differently from market and credit nsk The Bank believes that effective management of operational nsks requires
ownership by the management responsible for the relevant business process Operational nsk within the Bank 15 thus
controlled through a network of controls, procedures, reports and responsibiliies overseen by Operatonal Risk Business
Management Within the Bank, each indmidual business area and management level takes responsibility for its own
operationat nsks and provides adequate resources and procedures for the management of those nsks
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28. Financial Instruments Risk Position (continued)

g. Operational risk (continued)

Each area takes responsibility for its own operahconal nsks The Bank has established a central team that focus on the
coordinalion of a consistent policy, tools and practices throughout the orgamisation for the management, monstonng and
reporting of relevant operational nsks This knowledge and expenence are shared throughout the Bank to mamntan a
coordmated approach

In addition to the monthly EMEA Risk Committee meetings on operational nsk with representation from senior staff in all the
relevant functions, the Credit Suisse group utlses a number of firm-wide tools for the management, measurement,
monitonng and reporting of operational nsk These include nsk and control assessments, the collection, reporting and
analysis of intemal and extemnal loss data, and key nsk indicator reporting

h. Reputational risk

The Bank's policy 1s to avoid any action or transachon that bnngs with it a potentally unacceptable level of nsk to the Credit
Suisse group's reputation Reputatonal nsk may anse from a vanety of sources, including the nature or purpose of a
proposed transachon, the identity or nature of a potential client, the regulatory or political climate in which the business will
be transacted or significant public attention surounding the transaction itself ‘Where the presence of these or other factors
gwves nse to potential reputational nsk for Credit Suisse, the relevant business proposal 1s required to be submitted to senior
management and Credit Swsse group's Reputational Risk Review Process Thrs involves a vetting of the proposal by senior
business management, and its subsequent referral to one of the Credit Suisse group's Reputational Risk Approvers, each of
whom 1s independent of the business dmsions and has authonty to approve, reject, or impose conditions on Credit Suisse
group's parkcipation

i, Liquidity risk

The Treasury department manages the day-to-day hquidty posiion of the Credii Suisse group The Bank 1s managed
within the framework below

Liqudity 1s managed centrally to ensure that sufficient funds are erther on hand or readily available at short notice in the
event that it expenences any impaiment of its ability to borrow in the unsecured debt markets This ensures that, even in
the event of a hquidity dislocation, the Credit Suisse group has sufficient funds to repay matunng habilties without requinng
any balance sheet reducton The Credt Susse group's liquidity disciplines are segregated into two mamn funding
franchises

¢ Those funds raised directly by Credit Swisse group, with access to stable deposit-based core funds and the interbank
markets The Bank has direct access to Credit Suisse group's bank sourced funding and therefore constitutes part of this
‘Bank Funding Franctuse'

* Those funds raised by fellow subsidianes, particularly CS (USA) Inc, the SEC registered US holding company — the 'Non-
Bank Funding Franchise’

Secondary sources of hquidity ensure avalability of altematwve funding to meet business plans and commercial
commitments Both funding franchises have access to different forms of secondary liquidity through their abiity to access
secured funding via repurchase and other secured financing markets These markets have proved to be reliable even in
high stress conditions  The hquidity position 1s overseen by Treasury and reported regulardy to CARMC
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28. Financial Instruments Risk Position (continued)

j) Corporate asset and liability management

The Treasury department of the Credit Suisse group also oversees corporate policy with respect to interest rate and foreign
exchange exposure, as well as a range of other important policy areas including debt matunty profile, intemal and extemal
capitaiisation and intercompany funding Credit Suisse group manages nterest rate and foreign cumrency exposures from a
corporate perspective  Trading dwisions are authonsed to take such nsks as part of their business strategies, within Itmits
set by CARMC

k) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow nterest rate nsk 1s the nsk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates  Far value interest rate nsk is the nsk that the value of a financial Instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates  The group takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of
market interest rates on both s far value and cash flow nsks Interest margins may increase as a result of such changes
but may reduce or create losses in the event that unexpected movements anse The Board sets imits on the level of
mismatch of interest rate repnaing that may be undertaken, which 1s monitored daly
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28. Financial instruments risk position {continued)

k) Cash flow and fair value interest rate nsk (continued)

The table below summanses the Bank's exposure o interest rate nsks Included in the table are the Bank's assets at carrying amounts, categonsed by the earier of contractual
repncing or matunty dates Note that not all asset classes are included in this disclosure

As at 31 December 2007

Non- Allowance

Upto1 1-3 3-12 Over 5 interest for
month months months  1-5 years years bearing On demand impairment Total
Assets £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 2000 £000
Cash and due from banks - - - - - - 5,817 - 5817
interest-beanng deposits with banks 1,002,763 38,514 8,997 - - - - - 1,060,274
Secunties purchased under resale agreements 942,840 - - - - - - - 942,840
Trading assets - - - - - - 13,126 - 13,126
Loans 228,027 171,467 86,627 2,936 - - - (119 487,138
Other assets - - - - - 20,477 - - 20,477
Total assets exposed 2,173,630 209,981 94,524 2,236 - 20,477 18,943 (119) 2,519,672

Liabilities

Deposits 1,830,629 217,371 89,029 2,223 - - 226,604 - 2,365,906
Trading habities - - - - - - 12,807 12,807
Provisions - - - - - 3,767 - - 3,767
Other habiities - - - - - 50,890 - - 50,890
Total liabilites exposed 1,830,629 217,371 89,029 2,223 - 54,657 239,461 - 2,433,370
Total interest sensitivity gap 343,001 (7,390) 5,495 13 - (34,180) (220,518) {119) 86,302
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28 Financial instruments risk position (continued)

k) Cash flow and fair value interest rate nsk (continued)

As at 31 December 2006

Non- Allowance

Upto1 1-3 3-12 Qver 5 interest for
month months months 1-5 years years bearing On demand impairment Total
Assets £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash and due from banks - - - - - 14,380 - - 14,380
Interest-beanng deposits with banks 89,683 18,540 21,226 - - - - - 129,449
Secunties purchased under resale agreements 920,979 - - - - - - - 920,979
Trading assets - - - - - 12,349 - - 12,349
Loans 164,407 168,166 81,390 - - - - - 413,962
Other assets - - - - - 10,845 - - 10,845
Total assets exposed 1,175,069 186,705 102,616 - - 37,574 - - 1,501,964

Liabilties

Deposits 1,070,092 196,146 96,735 - - - - - 1,362,973
Trading habilbes - - - - - 12,069 - - 12,069
Provisions - - - - - 7,042 - - 7,042
Other liabilthies - - - - - 39,221 - - 39,21
Total liabilities exposed 1,070,092 196,146 96,735 - - 58,332 - - 1,421,305
Total interest sensitivity gap 104,977 {9,441) 5,881 - - {20,758} - - 80,659
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29. Capntal adequacy

The Bank's capital adequacy and capital resources are managed and monitored based on practices developed by
the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (‘the Basel Committee’) and governed by European Union
Drirectives, spechically the Banking Consolidation Directive and the Capital Adequacy Directives (CAD1 and
CAD2) These directives were subsequently implemented in the UK by the Financial Services Authonty ('FSAY),
the UK regulator, and incorporated within the Intenm Prudential Sourcebook for Banks

The Bank must at all tmes monitor and demonstrate the comphance with the relevant regulatory capital
requirements of the FSA The Bank has put in place processes and controls to momtor and manage the Bank'’s
capital adequacy and no breaches we reported to the FSA dunng the year

Tier 1 caprtal compnses shareholders' equity according to Intemational Financial Reporting Standards, with
shareholders' equity being adjusted to reflect differences in regulatory treatments for certan asset portfolios
Under Basel Committee guidelines, a bank must have a ratio of total elgible capital to aggregate nsk-weighted
assets of at least 8%, although the FSA requires this ratio to exceed the Indmdual Caprtal Requirement ('ICR")
determined for each company, which for the Bank 15 12%

The ratios measure capital adequacy by companng eligible caprtal with nsk-weighted assets posihons, which
include balance sheet assets, positions in securties not held in the trading portfolio, off-balance sheet
transactions converted into credit equivalents and market positions n the trading portfolio At 31 December
2007 and 2006, the Bank was adequately capitalised under the regulatory provisions outlined above

There were no regulatory changes in 2007 from the previous penod

The following table sets forth details of nsk-weighted assets, caprtal and ratios

2007 2006

£000 2000
Total shareholder's equity 92,384 88,504
Tier 1 capial 92,384 88,504
Total capital 92,384 88,504
Total capital 992,384 88,504
Total capital rahio 16 12% 15.47%
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